

MINUTES

DEVELOPMENT DETERMINATION PANEL MEETING

Electronically Determined on

TUESDAY 22 JUNE 2021



Minutes of a Meeting of the Development Determination Panel Electronically Determined on Tuesday 22 June 2021

ATTENDANCE:

Panel Members

Peter Robinson (Chairperson) Steven Findlay Liza Cordoba Executive Manager Development Assessment

Manager, Development Assessment Manager, Strategic & Place Planning

DA2020/1323 Page 2 of 30



3.0 DEVELOPMENT DETERMINATION PANEL REPORTS

3.1 MOD2020/0636 - 2 TOURMALINE STREET NARRABEEN - MODIFICATION OF DEVELOPMENT CONSENT DA2018/1290 GRANTED FOR ALTERATIONS AND ADDITIONS TO AN EXISTING DWELLING HOUSE

PROCEEDINGS IN BRIEF

The Panel viewed the site and the surrounds.

The Panel was addressed by representatives of the applicant.

The Panel generally concurred with the Officer's assessment report.

STATEMENT OF REASON

For the reasons set out in the assessment report, the proposal is not substantially the same development and Council does not have the power to approve the application.

COMMUNITY CONSULTATION

Issues raised in the submission has been taken into account in the report and the meeting.

DECISION ON APPLICATION

THAT Council, as the consent authority, **refuses** Mod2020/0636 for Modification of Development Consent DA2018/1290 granted for alterations and additions to an existing dwelling house on land at Lot B DP 377414, 2 Tourmaline Street, Narrabeen, for the following reason:

Pursuant to Section 4.55(1A) of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act1979, the proposed development to which the Development Consent as modified by the Modification Application relates is not substantially the same development as the development for which the consent was originally granted.

Vote: 3/0

DA2020/1323 Page 3 of 30



3.2 DA2020/1323 - 5 LOCH STREET FRESHWATER - DEMOLITION WORKS AND CONSTRUCTION OF A DWELLING HOUSE INCLUDING A SWIMMING POOL

PROCEEDINGS IN BRIEF

The Panel viewed the site and the surrounds.

The Panel was addressed by an objector and their representative and representatives of the applicant.

The Panel received a Supplementary Memo.

The Panel concurred with the assessment and reasons for refusal provided in the Officer's assessment report, however believes that the proposal could be conditioned to produce an acceptable outcome in relation to view sharing. In this regard, the ridge height of the garage pavilion could be lowered through various means, such as reducing the finished floor level RL of the garage and floor to ceiling height within the garage, to achieve an overall reduction of 700mm.

In regards to the dwelling, the ridge should also be reduced in height by 700mm. This may require the removal of fabric from the existing building to lower all floor levels and achieve the reduction in ridge height.

These changes should result in a reduction of finished ground levels of the courtyard by a minimum 500mm. In this regard, the proposal will comply with the objectives of Part C7 Excavation and Landfill of Warringah Development Control Plan 2011.

STATEMENT OF REASON

The proposal as conditioned, generally satisfies the relevant strategy, objectives and provisions of Warringah Local Environmental Plan 2011 and the Warringah Development Control Plan 2011, subject to conditions.

COMMUNITY CONSULTATION

Issues raised in the submissions have been taken into account in the report and the meeting.

DECISION ON APPLICATION

THAT Council, as the consent authority, **approves** Development Consent to DA2020/1323 for Demolition works and construction of a dwelling house including a swimming pool on land at Lot 43A DP 345688, 5 Loch Street, Freshwater, subject to the conditions outlined below.

1. Approved Plans and Supporting Documentation

The development must be carried out in compliance (except as amended by any other condition of consent) with the following:

a) Approved Plans

Architectural Plans - Endorsed with Council's stamp			
Drawing No.	Dated	Prepared By	
DA-A01 Site Plan	· ·	Andrew Burgess Architects	

DA2020/1323 Page 4 of 30



DA-A06 Demolition Plans	Rev. 2, 23 April 2021	Andrew Burgess Architects
DA-A07 Excavation & Fill	Rev. 2, 23 April 2021	Andrew Burgess Architects
DA-D01 Ground Floor Plan	Rev. 2, 23 April 2021	Andrew Burgess Architects
DA-D02 First Floor Plan	Rev. 2, 23 April 2021	Andrew Burgess Architects
DA-D03 Lower Ground Floor Plan	Rev. 2, 23 April 2021	Andrew Burgess Architects
DA-D04 Roof Plan	Rev. 2, 23 April 2021	Andrew Burgess Architects
DA-E01 Elevations North & South	Rev. 2, 23 April 2021	Andrew Burgess Architects
DA-E02 Elevations East & West	Rev. 2, 23 April 2021	Andrew Burgess Architects
DA-E03 Street Elevation	Rev. 2, 23 April 2021	Andrew Burgess Architects
DA-F01 Long Section A	Rev. 2, 23 April 2021	Andrew Burgess Architects
DA-F02 Long Section C	Rev. 2, 23 April 2021	Andrew Burgess Architects
DA-F03 Cross Section B	Rev. 2, 23 April 2021	Andrew Burgess Architects
DA-F04 Cross Section D	Rev. 2, 23 April 2021	Andrew Burgess Architects

Reports / Documentation – All recommendations and requirements contained within:			
Report No. / Page No. / Section No.	Dated	Prepared By	
BASIX Certificate No. 1029418S	13 August 2019	Deneb Design	
Arborcultural Impact Assessment Report	Undated	Byron Bay Tree Services	
Report on Geotechnical Site Investigation	May 2019	Crozier Geotechnical Consultants	

- b) Any plans and / or documentation submitted to satisfy the Conditions of this consent.
- c) The development is to be undertaken generally in accordance with the following:

Landscape Plans			
Drawing No.	Dated	Prepared By	
LP01 DA Cover	Rev. G, 7 May 2020	Dangar Barin Smith	
LP02 Landscape Plan Ground	Rev. G, 7 May 2020	Dangar Barin Smith	
LP03 Landscape Plan Lower Ground	Rev. G, 7 May 2020	Dangar Barin Smith	

DA2020/1323 Page 5 of 30



In the event of any inconsistency between conditions of this consent and the drawings/documents referred to above, the conditions of this consent will prevail.

Reason: To ensure the work is carried out in accordance with the determination of Council and approved plans.

2. Compliance with Other Department, Authority or Service Requirements

The development must be carried out in compliance with all recommendations and requirements, excluding general advice, within the following:

Other Department, Authority or Service	EDMS Reference	Dated
Ausgrid	Response Ausgrid Referral	26 November 2020

(NOTE: For a copy of the above referenced document/s, please see Application Tracking on Council's website www.northernbeaches.nsw.gov.au)

Reason: To ensure the work is carried out in accordance with the determination and the statutory requirements of other departments, authorities or bodies.

3. Approved Land Use

Nothing in this consent shall authorise the use of site/onsite structures/units/tenancies as detailed on the approved plans for any land use of the site beyond the definition of a dwelling house.

A dwelling house is defined as:

"dwelling house means a building containing only one dwelling."

(development is defined by the Warringah Environment Plan 2011 (as amended) Dictionary)

Any variation to the approved land use and/occupancy of any unit beyond the scope of the above definition will require the submission to Council of a new development application.

Reason: To ensure compliance with the terms of this consent.

4. Prescribed conditions (Demolition):

- (a) A sign must be erected in a prominent position on any site on which building work, subdivision work or demolition work is being carried out:
 - (i) showing the name of the principal contractor (if any) for any building work and a telephone number on which that person may be contacted outside working hours, and
 - (ii) stating that unauthorised entry to the work site is prohibited.

DA2020/1323 Page 6 of 30



Any such sign is to be maintained while the building work, subdivision work or demolition work is being carried out, but must be removed when the work has been completed.

- (b) Residential building work within the meaning of the Home Building Act 1989 must not be carried out unless the Principal Certifying Authority for the development to which the work relates (not being the Council) has given the Council written notice of the following information:
 - (i) in the case of work for which a principal contractor is required to be appointed:
 - A. the name and licence number of the principal contractor, and
 - B. the name of the insurer by which the work is insured under Part 6 of that Act,
 - (ii) in the case of work to be done by an owner-builder:
 - A. the name of the owner-builder, and
 - B. if the owner-builder is required to hold an owner-builder permit under that Act, the number of the owner-builder permit.

If arrangements for doing the residential building work are changed while the work is in progress so that the information notified under becomes out of date, further work must not be carried out unless the Principal Certifying Authority for the development to which the work relates (not being the Council) has given the Council written notice of the updated information.

- (c) Development that involves an excavation that extends below the level of the base of the footings of a building on adjoining land, the person having the benefit of the development consent must, at the person's own expense:
 - (i) protect and support the adjoining premises from possible damage from the excavation, and
 - (ii) where necessary, underpin the adjoining premises to prevent any such damage.
 - (iii) must, at least 7 days before excavating below the level of the base of the footings of a building on an adjoining allotment of land, give notice of intention to do so to the owner of the adjoining allotment of land and furnish particulars of the excavation to the owner of the building being erected or demolished.
 - (iv) the owner of the adjoining allotment of land is not liable for any part of the cost of work carried out for the purposes of this clause, whether carried out on the allotment of land being excavated or on the adjoining allotment of land.

Reason: Legislative Requirement.

5. Prescribed Conditions

- (a) All building works must be carried out in accordance with the requirements of the Building Code of Australia (BCA).
- (b) BASIX affected development must comply with the schedule of BASIX commitments specified within the submitted BASIX Certificate (demonstrated compliance upon plans/specifications is required prior to the issue of the Construction Certificate);
- (c) A sign must be erected in a prominent position on any site on which building work, subdivision work or demolition work is being carried out:
 - (i) showing the name, address and telephone number of the Principal Certifying Authority for the work, and
 - (ii) showing the name of the principal contractor (if any) for any building work and a telephone number on which that person may be contacted outside working hours, and
 - (iii) stating that unauthorised entry to the work site is prohibited.

 Any such sign is to be maintained while the building work, subdivision work or

DA2020/1323 Page 7 of 30



- demolition work is being carried out, but must be removed when the work has been completed.
- (d) Residential building work within the meaning of the Home Building Act 1989 must not be carried out unless the Principal Certifying Authority for the development to which thework relates (not being the Council) has given the Council written notice of the following information:
 - (i) in the case of work for which a principal contractor is required to be appointed:
 - A. the name and licence number of the principal contractor, and
 - B. the name of the insurer by which the work is insured under Part 6 ofthat Act.
 - (ii) in the case of work to be done by an owner-builder:
 - A. the name of the owner-builder, and
 - B. if the owner-builder is required to hold an owner-builder permit underthat Act, the number of the owner-builder permit.

If arrangements for doing the residential building work are changed while the work is inprogress so that the information notified under becomes out of date, further work must not be carried out unless the Principal Certifying Authority for the development to whichthe work relates (not being the Council) has given the Council written notice of the updated information.

- (e) Development that involves an excavation that extends below the level of the base ofthe footings of a building on adjoining land, the person having the benefit of the development consent must, at the person's own expense:
 - (i) protect and support the adjoining premises from possible damage from the excavation, and
 - (ii) where necessary, underpin the adjoining premises to prevent any suchdamage.
 - (iii) must, at least 7 days before excavating below the level of the base of the footings of a building on an adjoining allotment of land, give notice of intentionto do so to the owner of the adjoining allotment of land and furnish particularsof the excavation to the owner of the building being erected or demolished.
 - (iv) the owner of the adjoining allotment of land is not liable for any part of the costof work carried out for the purposes of this clause, whether carried out on the allotment of land being excavated or on the adjoining allotment of land.

In this clause, allotment of land includes a public road and any other

public place.Reason: Legislative requirement.

6. General requirements (Demolition):

(a) Unless authorised by Council:

Demolition and excavation works are restricted to:

• 8.00 am to 5.00 pm Monday to Friday only.



(Excavation work includes the use of any excavation machinery and the use of jackhammers, rock breakers, excavators, loaders and the like, regardless of whether the activities disturb or alter the natural state of the existing ground stratum or are breaking up/removing materials from the site).

- (b) At all times after the submission a Notice of Commencement to Council, a copy of the Development Consent is to remain onsite at all times until completion of demolition works. The consent shall be available for perusal of any Authorised Officer.
- (c) Where demolition works have been completed and new construction works have not commenced within 4 weeks of the completion of the demolition works that area affected by the demolition works shall be fully stabilised and the site must be maintained in a safe and clean state until such time as new construction works commence.
- (d) Onsite toilet facilities (being either connected to the sewer or an accredited sewer management facility) for workers are to be provided for construction sites at a rate of 1 per 20persons.
- (e) The applicant shall bear the cost of all works that occur on Council's property.
- (f) No building, demolition, excavation or material of any nature shall be placed on Council'sfootpaths, roadways, parks or grass verges without Council Approval.
- (g) Demolition materials and builders' wastes are to be removed to approved waste/recyclingcentres.
- (h) All sound producing plant, equipment, machinery or fittings will not exceed more than 5dB(A)above the background level when measured from any property boundary and will comply with the Environment Protection Authority's NSW Industrial Noise Policy.)
- (i) No trees or native shrubs or understorey vegetation on public property (footpaths, roads, reserves, etc.) or on the land to be developed shall be removed or damaged during constructionunless specifically approved in this consent including for the erection of any fences, hoardings or other temporary works.

Reason: To ensure that works do not interfere with reasonable amenity expectations of residents and the community.

7. General Requirements

- (a) Unless authorised by Council:
 Building construction and delivery of material hours are restricted to:
 - 7.00 am to 5.00 pm inclusive Monday to Friday,
 - 8.00 am to 1.00 pm inclusive on Saturday,
 - No work on Sundays and Public Holidays.



Demolition and excavation works are restricted to:

8.00 am to 5.00 pm Monday to Friday only.

(Excavation work includes the use of any excavation machinery and the use of jackhammers, rock breakers, excavators, loaders and the like, regardless of whetherthe activities disturb or alter the natural state of the existing ground stratum or are breaking up/removing materials from the site).

- (b) Should any asbestos be uncovered on site, its demolition and removal must be carried out in accordance with WorkCover requirements and the relevant Australian Standards.
- (c) At all times after the submission the Notice of Commencement to Council, a copy of the Development Consent and Construction Certificate is to remain onsite at all times until the issue of a final Occupation Certificate. The consent shall be available for perusal of any Authorised Officer.
- (d) Where demolition works have been completed and new construction works have notcommenced within 4 weeks of the completion of the demolition works that area affected by the demolition works shall be fully stabilised and the site must be maintained in a safe and clean state until such time as new construction works commence.
- (e) Onsite toilet facilities (being either connected to the sewer or an accredited sewer management facility) for workers are to be provided for construction sites at a rate of 1per 20 persons.
- (f) Prior to the release of the Construction Certificate, payment of the Long Service Levy isrequired. This payment can be made at Council or to the Long Services Payments Corporation. Payment is not required where the value of the works is less than \$25,000. The Long Service Levy is calculated on 0.35% of the building and construction work. The levy rate and level in which it applies is subject to legislative change. The applicable fee at the time of payment of the Long Service Levy will apply.
- (g) The applicant shall bear the cost of all works associated with the development thatoccurs on Council's property.
- (h) No skip bins, building materials, demolition or excavation waste of any nature, and nohoist, plant or machinery (crane, concrete pump or lift) shall be placed on Council's footpaths, roadways, parks or grass verges without Council Approval.
- (i) Demolition materials and builders' wastes are to be removed to approvedwaste/recycling centres.
- (j) No trees or native shrubs or understorey vegetation on public property (footpaths, roads, reserves, etc.) or on the land to be developed shall be removed or damagedduring construction unless specifically approved in this consent including for the erection of any fences, hoardings or other temporary works.
- (k) Prior to the commencement of any development onsite for:
 - i) Building/s that are to be erected
 - ii) Building/s that are situated in the immediate vicinity of a public place and isdangerous to persons or property on or in the public place
 - iii) Building/s that are to be demolished



- iv) For any work/s that is to be carried out
- v) For any work/s that is to be demolished

The person responsible for the development site is to erect or install on or around the development area such temporary structures or appliances (wholly within the development site) as are necessary to protect persons or property and to prevent unauthorised access to the site in order for the land or premises to be maintained in asafe or healthy condition. Upon completion of the development, such temporary structures or appliances are to be removed within 7 days.

- (I) A "Road Opening Permit" must be obtained from Council, and all appropriate chargespaid, prior to commencement of any work on Council property. The owner/applicant shall be responsible for all public utilities and services in the area of the work, shall notify all relevant Authorities, and bear all costs associated with any repairs and/or adjustments as those Authorities may deem necessary.
- (m) The works must comply with the relevant Ausgrid Network Standards and SafeWorkNSW Codes of Practice.
- (n) Requirements for new swimming pools/spas or existing swimming pools/spas affected by building works.
 - (1) Child resistant fencing is to be provided to any swimming pool or lockable cover to any spa containing water and is to be consistent with the following:

Relevant legislative requirements and relevant Australian Standards (including but not limited) to:

- (i) Swimming Pools Act 1992
- (ii) Swimming Pools Amendment Act 2009
- (iii) Swimming Pools Regulation 2018
- (iv) Australian Standard AS1926 Swimming Pool Safety
- (v) Australian Standard AS1926.1 Part 1: Safety barriers for swimmingpools
- (vi) Australian Standard AS1926.2 Part 2: Location of safety barriers forswimming pools.
- (2) A 'KEEP WATCH' pool safety and aquatic based emergency sign, issued by Royal Life Saving is to be displayed in a prominent position within the pool/spaarea.
- (3) Filter backwash waters shall be conveyed to the Sydney Water sewerage system in sewered areas or managed on-site in unsewered areas in a mannerthat does not cause pollution, erosion or run off, is separate from the irrigationarea for any wastewater system and is separate from any onsite stormwater management system.
- (4) Swimming pools and spas must be registered with the Division of LocalGovernment.

Reason: To ensure that works do not interfere with reasonable amenity expectations of residents and the community.



FEES / CHARGES / CONTRIBUTIONS

8. Policy Controls

Northern Beaches 7.12 Contributions Plan 2019

A monetary contribution of \$17,010.00 is payable to Northern Beaches Council for the provision of local infrastructure and services pursuant to section 7.12 of the Environmental Planning & Assessment Act 1979 and the Northern Beaches Section 7.12 Contributions Plan 2019. The monetary contribution is based on a development cost of \$1,701,000.00.

The monetary contribution is to be paid prior to the issue of the first Construction Certificate or Subdivision Certificate whichever occurs first, or prior to the issue of the Subdivision Certificate where no Construction Certificate is required. If the monetary contribution (total or in part) remains unpaid after the financial quarter that the development consent is issued, the amount unpaid (whether it be the full cash contribution or part thereof) will be adjusted on a quarterly basis in accordance with the applicable Consumer Price Index. If this situation applies, the cashcontribution payable for this development will be the total unpaid monetary contribution as adjusted.

The proponent shall provide to the Certifying Authority written evidence (receipt/s) from Councilthat the total monetary contribution has been paid.

The Northern Beaches Section 7.12 Contributions Plan 2019 may be inspected at 725 PittwaterRd, Dee Why and at Council's Customer Service Centres or alternatively, on Council's website at www.northernbeaches.nsw.gov.au

This fee must be paid prior to the issue of the Construction Certificate. Details demonstrating compliance are to be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority.

Reason: To provide for contributions in accordance with the Contribution Plan to fund the provision of new or augmented local infrastructure and services.

9. Security Bond

A bond (determined from cost of works) of \$10,000 and an inspection fee in accordance with Council's Fees and Charges paid as security are required to ensure the rectification of any damage that may occur to the Council infrastructure contained within the road reserve adjoiningthe site as a result of construction or the transportation of materials and equipment to and from the development site.

An inspection fee in accordance with Council adopted fees and charges (at the time of payment) is payable for each kerb inspection as determined by Council (minimum (1) one inspection).



All bonds and fees shall be deposited with Council prior to Construction Certificate or demolitionwork commencing, and details demonstrating payment are to be submitted to the Certifying Authority prior to the issue of the Construction Certificate.

To process the inspection fee and bond payment a Bond Lodgement Form must be completed with the payments (a copy of the form is attached to this consent and alternatively a copy is located on Council's website at www.northernbeaches.nsw.gov.au).

Reason: To ensure adequate protection of Council's infrastructure.

CONDITIONS TO BE SATISFIED PRIOR TO THE ISSUE OF THE CONSTRUCTION CERTIFICATE

10. Amendments to the approved plans

The following amendments are to be made to the approved plans:

- a) The ridge heights of both building to be reduced by 700mm
- b) The finished ground level of the courtyard to be reduced by a minimum 500mm
- c) The louvres of the privacy screen to window W3 are to be angled so as to prevent overlooking of the adjoining property to the north (7 Loch Street).
- d) No approval is granted for any solid-fuel fireplace. Approval for any solid-fuel fireplace is required under s68 of the Local Government Act.

Details demonstrating compliance are to be submitted to the Certifying Authority prior to theissue of the construction certificate.

Reason: To ensure development minimises unreasonable impacts upon surrounding land.

11. Boundary Identification Survey

A boundary identification survey, prepared by a Registered Surveyor, is to be prepared inrespect of the subject site.

The plans submitted for the Construction Certificate are to accurately reflect the property boundaries as shown on the boundary identification survey, with setbacks between the property boundaries and the approved works consistent with those nominated on the Approved Plans of this consent.

Details demonstrating compliance are to be submitted to the Certifying Authority prior to theissue of any Construction Certificate.

Reason: To ensure all approved works are constructed within the subject site and in a manneranticipated by the development consent.



12. On-site Stormwater Detention Details

The Applicant is to provide drainage plans detailing the provision of on-site stormwater detentionin accordance with Northern Beaches Council's Water Management Policy and generally in accordance with the concept drainage plans prepared by Taylor Consulting, drawing number Sheet -1 dated 27 May 2019. Detailed drainage plans are to be prepared by a suitably qualified Civil Engineer, who has membership to the Institution of Engineers Australia, National Engineers Register (NER) and registered in the General Area of Practice for civil engineering.

Detailed drainage plans, including Engineering certification that the design is in accordance with Council's Water Management Policy are to be submitted to the Certifying Authority for approval prior to the issue of the Construction Certificate.

Reason: To ensure appropriate provision for the disposal of stormwater and stormwatermanagement arising from the development.

13. Structural Adequacy and Excavation Work

Excavation work is to ensure the stability of the soil material of adjoining properties, the protection of adjoining buildings, services, structures and / or public infrastructure from damageusing underpinning, shoring, retaining walls and support where required. All retaining walls are to be structurally adequate for the intended purpose, designed and certified by a Structural Engineer, except where site conditions permit the following:

- (a) maximum height of 900mm above or below ground level and at least 900mm from anyproperty boundary, and
- (b) Comply with AS3700, AS3600 and AS1170 and timber walls with AS1720 and AS1170.

Details demonstrating compliance are to be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority prior to the issue of the Construction Certificate.

Reason: To provide public and private safety.

14. Vehicle Crossings Application

The Applicant is to submit an application for driveway levels with Council in accordance with Section 138 of the Roads Act 1993. The fee associated with the assessment and approval of the application is to be in accordance with Council's Fee and Charges.

An approval is to be submitted to the Certifying Authority prior to the issue of the ConstructionCertificate.

Reason: To facilitate suitable vehicular access to private property.



15. Soil and Water Management Program

A Soil and Water Management Plan prepared in accordance with Landcom's 'Managing UrbanStormwater: Soils and Construction' (2004) and implemented on site until the works are completed.

Details demonstrating compliance are to be submitted to the Certifying Authority prior to theissue of the Construction Certificate.

Reason: To protect the environment from the effects of sedimentation and erosion fromdevelopment sites.

16. Compliance with Standards

The development is required to be carried out in accordance with all relevant AustralianStandards.

Details demonstrating compliance with the relevant Australian Standard are to be submitted to the Certifying Authority prior to the issue of the Construction Certificate.

Reason: To ensure the development is constructed in accordance with appropriate standards.

17. External Finishes to Roof

The external finish to the roof shall have a medium to dark range in order to minimise solarreflections to neighbouring properties. Any roof with a metallic steel finish is not permitted.

Details demonstrating compliance are to be submitted to the Certifying Authority prior to theissue of the Construction Certificate.

Reason: To ensure that excessive glare or reflectivity nuisance does not occur as a result of thedevelopment.

18. Waste Management Plan

A Waste Management Plan must be prepared for this development. The Plan must be inaccordance with the Development Control Plan.

Details demonstrating compliance must be provided to the Certifying Authority prior to the issueof the Construction Certificate.

Reason: To ensure that any demolition and construction waste, including excavated material, isreused, recycled or disposed of in an environmentally friendly manner.



CONDITIONS THAT MUST BE ADDRESSED PRIOR TO ANY COMMENCEMENT

19. **Pre-Construction Dilapidation Report**

Dilapidation reports, including photographic surveys, of the following adjoining properties mustbe provided to the Principal Certifying Authority prior to any works commencing on the site (including demolition or excavation). The reports must detail the physical condition of those properties listed below, both internally and externally, including walls, ceilings, roof, structural members and other similar items.

Property / Properties:

- 3 Loch Street, Freshwater
- 7 Loch Street, Freshwater

The dilapidation report is to be prepared by a suitably qualified person. A copy of the report must be provided to Council, the Principal Certifying Authority and the owners of the affected properties prior to any works commencing.

In the event that access for undertaking the dilapidation report is denied by an adjoining owner, the applicant must demonstrate, in writing that all reasonable steps have been taken to obtain access. The Principal Certifying Authority must be satisfied that the requirements of this condition have been met prior to commencement of any works.

Note: This documentation is for record keeping purposes and may be used by an applicant or affected property owner to assist in any action required to resolve any civil dispute over damagerising from the works.

Details demonstrating compliance are to be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority prior to the commencement of any works on site.

Reason: To maintain proper records in relation to the proposed development.

20. Tree removal within the property

The following Exempt Species do not require Council consent for removal:

- i) Lagerstroemia indica, located close to the Northern boundary, tree No.2
- ii) Camellia Spp, located on the Western side of the existing dwelling, tree No.3
- iii) Plumeria rubra, located on the Southern boundary of the site, tree No.4
- iv) Plumeria rubra, located on the Western boundary of the site,

tree No.5Reason: to enable authorised building works.

Note: Any request to remove a tree approved for retention under the development application issubject to a Section 4.55 modification application, or an assessment by an Arborist with minimum AQF Level 5 in arboriculture that determines that the tree presents an imminent risk tolife or property.



21. **Project Arborist**

A Project Arborist with minimum AQF Level 5 in arboriculture shall be engaged to provide tree protection measures in accordance with Australian Standard 4970-2009 Protection of Trees onDevelopment Sites. The Project Arborist is to specify and oversee all tree protection measures such as tree protection fencing, trunk and branch protection, and ground protection.

The Project Arborist is to supervise all demolition, excavation and construction works near all trees to be retained, including construction methods near the existing trees to protect tree roots, trunks, branches and canopy. Where required, manual excavation is to occur ensuring no tree root at or >25mm (\varnothing) is damaged by works, unless approved by the Project Arborist.

Existing ground levels shall be maintained within the tree protection zone of trees to be retained,unless authorised by the Project Arborist.

All tree protection measures specified must:

- a) be in place before work commences on the site, and
- b) be maintained in good condition during the construction period, and
- c) remain in place for the duration of the construction works.

The Project Arborist shall provide certification to the Certifying Authority that all recommendations listed for the protection of the existing tree(s) have been carried out satisfactorily to ensure no impact to the health of the tree(s). Photographic documentation of the condition of all trees to be retained shall be recorded, including at commencement, during theworks and at completion.

Note:

- i) A separate permit or development consent may be required if the branches or roots of aprotected tree on the site or on an adjoining site are required to be pruned or removed.
- ii) Any potential impact to trees as assessed by the Project Arborist will require redesign of any approved component to ensure existing trees upon the subject site and adjoining properties are preserved and shall be the subject of a modification application where applicable.

Reason: tree protection.

CONDITIONS TO BE COMPLIED WITH DURING DEMOLITION AND BUILDING WORK

22. Road Reserve

The applicant shall ensure the public footways and roadways adjacent to the site are maintained in a safe condition at all times during the course of the work.



Reason: Public safety.

23. Removing, Handling and Disposing of Asbestos

Any asbestos material arising from the demolition process shall be removed and disposed of inaccordance with the following requirements:

- Work Health and Safety Act;
- Work Health and Safety Regulation;
- Code of Practice for the Safe Removal of Asbestos [NOHSC:2002 (1998)];
- Guide to the Control of Asbestos Hazards in Buildings and Structures [NOHSC: 3002(1998);
- Clause 42 of the Protection of the Environment Operations (Waste) Regulation 2005:and
- The demolition must be undertaken in accordance with Australian Standard AS2601 –The Demolition of Structures.

Reason: For the protection of the environment and human health.

24. Survey Certificate

A survey certificate prepared by a Registered Surveyor is to be provided demonstrating all perimeter walls columns and or other structural elements, floor levels and the finished roof/ridgeheight are in accordance with the approved plans and conditions of consent.

Details demonstrating compliance are to be submitted to the Principal Certifying

Authority. Reason: To demonstrate the proposal complies with the approved plans.

25. Vehicle Crossings

The Applicant is to reconstruct the vehicle crossing 3 metres wide at the kerb to 4 metres wideat the boundary in accordance with Northern Beaches Council Drawing No A4-3330/2 NH andthe driveway levels application approval. An Authorised Vehicle Crossing Contractor shall construct the vehicle crossing and associated works within the road reserve in plain concrete. All redundant laybacks and crossings are to be restored to kerb and grass. Prior to the pouringof concrete, the vehicle crossing is to be inspected by Council and a satisfactory "Vehicle Crossing Inspection" card issued.

A copy of the vehicle crossing inspection form is to be submitted to the Principal CertifyingAuthority.

Reason: To facilitate suitable vehicular access to private property.

26. Tree and vegetation protection

- a) Existing trees and vegetation shall be retained and protected, including:
- i) all trees and vegetation within the site not approved for removal, excluding exempt



trees (refernote (i)) and vegetation under the relevant planning instruments of legislation,

- ii) all trees and vegetation located on adjoining properties,
- iii) all road reserve trees and vegetation not approved for removal.
- b) Tree protection shall be undertaken as follows:
- i) tree protection shall be in accordance with Australian Standard 4970-2009 Protection of Treeson Development Sites, including the provision of temporary fencing to protect existing trees within 5 metres of development,
- ii) existing ground levels shall be maintained within the tree protection zone of trees to beretained, unless authorised by an Arborist with minimum AQF Level 5 in arboriculture.
- iii) removal of existing tree roots at or >25mm (\emptyset) diameter is not permitted without consultationwith an Arborist with minimum AQF Level 5 in arboriculture.
- iv) no excavated material, building material storage, site facilities, nor landscape materials are tobe placed within the canopy dripline of trees and other vegetation required to be retained.
- v) structures are to bridge tree roots at or >25mm (Ø) diameter unless directed by an Arboristwith minimum AQF Level 5 in arboriculture on site,
- vi) excavation for stormwater lines and all other utility services is not permitted within the tree protection zone, without consultation with an Arborist with minimum AQF Level 5 in arboricultureincluding advice on root protection measures,
- vii) should either or all of v), vi) and vii) occur during site establishment and construction works, an Arborist with minimum AQF Level 5 in arboriculture shall provide recommendations for tree protection measures. Details including photographic evidence of works undertaken shall be submitted by the Arborist to the Certifying Authority.
- viii) any temporary access to, or location of scaffolding within the tree protection zone of a protected tree or any other tree to be retained during the construction works is to be undertaken using the protection measures specified in sections 4.5.3 and 4.5.6 of Australian Standard 4970-2009 Protection of Trees on Development Sites,
- ix) the activities listed in section 4.2 of Australian Standard 4970-2009 Protection of Trees onDevelopment Sites shall not occur within the tree protection zone of any tree on the lot or anytree on an adjoining site,
- x) tree pruning from within the site to enable approved works shall not exceed 10% of any treecanopy, and shall be in accordance with Australian Standard 4373-2007 Pruning of Amenity Trees.
- xi) the tree protection measures specified in this clause must: i) be in place before work commences on the site, and ii) be maintained in good condition during the construction period, and iii) remain in place for the duration of the construction works.
- c) Tree protection shall specifically be undertaken in accordance with the recommendations in the Arboricultural Impact Assessment, as listed in the following sections:
- i) section 6.0 Tree Protection Plan

The Certifying Authority must ensure that:

d) The activities listed in section 4.2 of Australian Standard 4970-2009 Protection of Trees on Development Sites, do not occur within the tree protection zone of any tree, and any temporary access to, or location of scaffolding within the tree protection zone of a protected tree, or any other tree to be retained on the site during the construction, is undertaken using the protection measures specified in sections 4.5.3 and 4.5.6 of that standard.



Note:

- (i) Tree No.4 is noted on both the Architectural and Landscape Plans as being retained, and shall be subject to conditions listed in section (b)
- (ii) All street trees within the road verge and trees within private property are protected under Northern Beaches Council development control plans, except where Council's written consent for removal has been obtained. The felling, lopping, topping, ringbarking, or removal of any tree
- (s) is prohibited.

Reason: tree and vegetation protection.

27. Protection of rock and sites of significance

All rock outcrops outside of the area of approved works are to be preserved and protected at alltimes during demolition excavation and construction works.

Should any Aboriginal sites be uncovered during the carrying out of works, those works are to cease and Council, the NSW Office of Environment and Heritage (OEH) and the MetropolitanLocal Aboriginal Land Council are to be contacted.

Reason: preservation of significant environmental features.

28. Installation and Maintenance of Sediment Control

Measures used for erosion and sediment control on building sites are to be adequately maintained at all times and must be installed in accordance with Council's Specifications for Erosion and Sediment Control. All measures shall remain in proper operation until all development activities have been completed and the site fully stabilised.

Details demonstrating compliance are to be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority.

Reason: To protect the environment from the effects of sedimentation and erosion fromdevelopment sites.

29. Fill Material

All landfill must be clean and not contain any materials that are contaminated and must complywith the relevant legislation and standards. Landfill areas shall be constructed to ensure the geological stability of the work.

Reason: To ensure that landfill material is suitable and managed appropriately.



CONDITIONS WHICH MUST BE COMPLIED WITH PRIOR TO THE ISSUE OF THE OCCUPATION CERTIFICATE

30. Landscape completion

Landscaping is to be implemented in accordance with the approved Landscape Plan, inclusive of the following conditions:

i) replace the proposed *Cupaniopsis anacardioides* with a locally native tree species as per the *Native Plant Species Guide - Curl Curl Ward*. Suggested alternatives include *Callicoma serratifolia, Eucalyptus haemastoma, Melaleuca ericifolia* or *Tristaniopsis laurina*

Prior to the issue of an Occupation Certificate, a landscape report prepared by a landscape architect or landscape designer shall be submitted to the Certifying Authority, certifying that thelandscape works have been completed in accordance with any conditions of consent.

Reason: environmental amenity.

31. Condition of retained vegetation - Project Arborist

Prior to the issue of an Occupation Certificate, a report prepared by the project arborist shall besubmitted to the Certifying Authority, assessing the health and impact on all existing trees required to be retained, including the following information:

- a) compliance to any Arborist recommendations for tree protection generally and duringexcavation works,
- b) extent of damage sustained by vegetation as a result of the construction works,
- c) any subsequent remedial works required to ensure the long term retention of the vegetation.

Reason: tree protection.

32. Post-Construction Dilapidation Report

Post-Construction Dilapidation Reports, including photos of any damage evident at the time ofinspection, must be submitted after the completion of works. The report must:

- Compare the post-construction report with the pre-construction report,
- Clearly identify any recent damage and whether or not it is likely to be the result of the development works,
- Should any damage have occurred, suggested remediation methods.

Copies of the reports must be given to the property owners referred to in the Pre-ConstructionDilapidation Report Condition. Copies must also be lodged with Council.



Details demonstrating compliance with this condition are to be submitted to the PrincipalCertifying Authority prior to the issuing of any Occupation Certificate.

Reason: To maintain proper records in relation to the proposed development.

33. **Positive Covenant and Restriction as to User for On-site Stormwater Disposal Structures**The Applicant shall lodge the Legal Documents Authorisation Application with Council. The application shall include the original completed request forms (NSW Land Registry standard forms 13PC and/or 13RPA) and a copy of the Works-as-Executed plan (details overdrawn on acopy of the approved drainage plan) and Hydraulic engineers' certification.

The Applicant shall create on the Title a positive covenant in respect to the ongoing maintenance and restriction as to user over the on-site stormwater disposal structures within this development consent. The terms of the positive covenant and restriction are to be prepared to Council's standard requirements at the applicant's expense and endorsed by Northern Beaches Council's delegate prior to lodgment with the NSW Land Registry Services. Northern Beaches Council shall be nominated as the party to release, vary or modify such covenant. A copy of the certificate of title demonstrating the creation of the positive covenant and restriction as to user is to be submitted.

Details demonstrating compliance are to be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority prior to the issue of the Occupation Certificate.

Reason: To ensure the on-site stormwater disposal system is maintained to an appropriate operational standard.

34. House / Building Number

House/building number is to be affixed to the building to be readily visible from the publicdomain.

Details demonstrating compliance are to be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority prior to the issue of any interim / final Occupation Certificate.

Reason: Proper identification of buildings.

35. Swimming Pool Requirements

The Swimming Pool shall not be filled with water nor be permitted to retain water until:

- (a) All required safety fencing has been erected in accordance with and all other requirementshave been fulfilled with regard to the relevant legislative requirements and relevant Australian Standards (including but not limited) to:
 - (i) Swimming Pools Act 1992;
 - (ii) Swimming Pools Amendment Act 2009;
 - (iii) Swimming Pools Regulation 2008
 - (iv) Australian Standard AS1926 Swimming Pool Safety



- (v) Australian Standard AS1926.1 Part 1: Safety barriers for swimming pools
- (vi) Australian Standard AS1926.2 Part 2: Location of safety barriers for swimming pools
- (b) A certificate of compliance prepared by the manufacturer of the pool safety fencing, shall be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority, certifying compliance with Australian Standard1926.
- (c) Filter backwash waters shall be discharged to the Sydney Water sewer mains in accordance with Sydney Water's requirements. Where Sydney Water mains are not available inrural areas, the backwash waters shall be managed onsite in a manner that does not cause pollution, erosion or run off, is separate from the irrigation area for any wastewater system and is separate from any onsite stormwater management system. Appropriate instructions of artificial resuscitation methods.
- (d) A warning sign stating 'YOUNG CHILDREN SHOULD BE SUPERVISED WHEN USINGTHIS POOL' has been installed.
 - (e) Signage showing resuscitation methods and emergency contact
 - (f) All signage shall be located in a prominent position within the pool area.
 - (g) Swimming pools and spas must be registered with the Division of Local Government.

Details demonstrating compliance are to be submitted to the Certifying Authority prior to theissue of an Interim / Final Occupation Certificate.

Reason: To protect human life (DACPLF09)

ON-GOING CONDITIONS THAT MUST BE COMPLIED WITH AT ALL TIMES

36. Geotechnical Recommendations

Any ongoing recommendations of the risk assessment required to manage the hazards identified in the Geotechnical Report referenced in Condition 1 of this consent are to memaintained and adhered to for the life of the development.

Reason: To ensure geotechnical risk is mitigated appropriately.

37. Landscape maintenance

If any landscape materials/components or planting under this consent fails, they are to be replaced with similar materials/components. Trees, shrubs and groundcovers required to be planted under this consent are to be mulched, watered and fertilised as required at the time ofplanting.

MINUTES OF DEVELOPMENT DETERMINATION PANEL MEETING



22 JUNE 2021

If any tree, shrub or groundcover required to be planted under this consent fails, they are to be replaced with similar species to maintain the landscape theme and be generally in accordance with the approved Landscape Plan and any conditions of consent.

All weeds are to be removed and controlled in accordance with the NSW Biosecurity Act 2015,

Reason: to maintain local environmental amenity.

Vote: 3/0

This is the final page of the Minutes comprising 24 pages numbered 1 to 24 of the Development Determination Panel meeting electronically determined on Tuesday 22 June 2021.